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	 State of South Carolina 
   
  Request for Proposal  
 
Amendment 2   
	 Solicitation Number:
 Date Issued:
 Procurement Officer:
 Phone:
 E-Mail Address:
Address:
	 5400007437
 05/16/2014 
 CHRISTY SMITH
 803-896-0022
 csmith@mmo.sc.gov
1201 Main Street, Suite 601
Columbia, SC 29201


  
	  DESCRIPTION:  Surface Water Quantity Models  

	  USING GOVERNMENTAL UNIT:  SC Department of Natural Resources Admin  


  
	The Term "Offer" Means Your "Bid" or "Proposal".  Unless submitted on-line, your offer must be submitted in a sealed package. Solicitation Number & Opening Date must appear on package exterior. See "Submitting Your Offer" provision.


  
	   SUBMIT YOUR OFFER ON-LINE AT THE FOLLOWING URL:   http://www.procurement.sc.gov  

	   SUBMIT OFFER BY (Opening Date/Time):   06/05/2014 14:30:00 (See "Deadline For Submission Of Offer" provision) 

	   QUESTIONS MUST BE RECEIVED BY:   04/25/2014 14:30:00 csmith@mmo.sc.gov (See "Questions From Offerors" provision) 

	   NUMBER OF COPIES TO BE SUBMITTED:   SEE PAGE 3 

	 CONFERENCE TYPE:   Not Applicable 
            DATE & TIME:     
  
 (As appropriate, see "Conferences - Pre-Bid/Proposal" & "Site Visit" provisions)
	 LOCATION:   Not Applicable 


  
	 AWARD & AMENDMENTS
	Award will be posted on 06/27/2014.  The award, this solicitation, any amendments, and any related notices will be posted at the following web address: http://www.procurement.sc.gov 


  
	Unless submitted on-line, you must submit a signed copy of this form with Your Offer. By submitting a bid or proposal, You agree to be bound by the terms of the Solicitation. You agree to hold Your Offer open for a minimum of thirty (30) calendar days after the Opening Date.                                     (See "Signing Your Offer" and "Electronic Signature" provisions.)

	 NAME OF OFFEROR
 
 
 (full legal name of business submitting the offer)
	Any award issued will be issued to, and the contract will be formed with, the entity identified as the Offeror. The entity named as the offeror must be a single and distinct legal entity. Do not use the name of a branch office or a division of a larger entity if the branch or division is not a separate legal entity, i.e., a separate corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, etc.

	 AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE
 
 (Person must be authorized to submit binding offer to contract on behalf of Offeror.)
	TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NO.
 
 (See "Taxpayer Identification Number" provision)

	 TITLE
 
 (business title of person signing above)
	 STATE VENDOR NO.
 
 (Register to Obtain S.C. Vendor No. at www.procurement.sc.gov) 

	 PRINTED NAME
 
 (printed name of person signing above)
	 DATE SIGNED
	 STATE OF INCORPORATION
 
 (If you are a corporation, identify the state of incorporation.)


  
	 OFFEROR'S TYPE OF ENTITY:   (Check one)                                                                    (See "Signing Your Offer" provision.) 
 
   ___ Sole Proprietorship                                  ___ Partnership                                  ___ Other_____________________________
 
   ___ Corporate entity (not tax-exempt)          ___ Corporation (tax-exempt)            ___ Government entity (federal, state, or local)


COVER PAGE (NOV. 2007)
[bookmark: SC_01_015_1]SAP
AMENDMENTS TO SOLICITATION (JANUARY 2006):  (a) The Solicitation may be amended at any time prior to opening. All actual and prospective Offerors should monitor the following web site for the issuance of Amendments: www.procurement.sc.gov. (b) Offerors shall acknowledge receipt of any amendment to this solicitation (1) by signing and returning the amendment, (2) by identifying the amendment number and date in the space provided for this purpose on Page Two, (3) by letter, or (4) by submitting a bid that indicates in some way that the bidder received the amendment. (c) If this solicitation is amended, then all terms and conditions which are not modified remain unchanged.

THE SOLICITATION IS AMENDED AS PROVIDED HEREIN. INFORMATION OR CHANGES RESULTING FROM QUESTIONS WILL BE SHOWN IN A QUESTION-AND-ANSWER FORMAT. ALL QUESTIONS RECEIVED HAVE BEEN REPRINTED BELOW. THE “STATE’S RESPONSE” SHOULD BE READ WITHOUT REFERENCE TO THE QUESTIONS. THE QUESTIONS ARE INCLUDED SOLELY TO PROVIDE A CROSS-REFERENCE TO THE POTENTIAL OFFEROR THAT SUBMITTED THE QUESTION. QUESTIONS DO NOT FORM A PART OF THE CONTRACT; THE “STATE’S RESPONSE” DOES. ANY RESTATEMENT OF PART OR ALL OF AN EXISTING PROVISION OF THE SOLICITATION IN AN ANSWER DOES NOT MODIFY THE ORIGINAL PROVISION EXCEPT AS FOLLOWS: UNDERLINED TEXT IS ADDED TO THE ORIGINAL PROVISON. STRICKEN TEXT IS DELETED.

GENERAL CHANGES TO THE SOLICITATION:

1. Cover Page, SUBMIT OFFER BY (Opening Date/Time) is hereby amended as follows:  

SUBMIT OFFER BY (Opening Date/Time):  05/08/2014 06/05/2014 14:30:00 (See "Deadline For Submission Of Offer" provision)

2. Cover Page, AWARD & AMENDMENTS is hereby amended as follows:  

Award will be posted on 05/30/2014 06/27/2014.  The award, this solicitation, any amendments, and any related notices will be posted at the following web address: http://www.procurement.sc.gov. 

3. PAGE THREE, NUMBER OF COPIES is hereby amended as follows:  

NUMBER OF COPIES
Offerors will need to follow these instructions carefully when responding to the solicitation online.
1. The original solicitation response should be submitted on-line and is the official response.

2. All Offerors should attach all additional requested documents to their response in the online system. These documents can be attached under the “Notes and Attachments” tab in the online system either on the main response page or under the necessary line item.

In addition to the offer you submit on-line, the Offerer must submit the following: 
· In accordance with clause titled “Submitting Redacted Offers (Feb 2007) located in Section IV of this RFP, one (1) redacted copy of both technical and business proposal;

· Six (6) copies of your technical proposal on Iron Key or AES 256 bit hardware encrypted thumb drives; and

· One (1) copy of your business proposal on Iron Key or AES 256 bit hardware encrypted a thumb drive	

All copies requested must be delivered no later than the date and time specified on the cover page of the solicitation to the following address:  	

Information Technology Management Office
Attention: Christy Smith
Solicitation Number: 5400006976 5400007437
1201 Main Street, Suite 601
Columbia, SC 29201


VENDOR QUESTIONS:

Question 1: Does this project have an upper limit on its budget?   

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   The current appropriated budget is $1.5 million


Question 2: There doesn’t appear to be much elaboration on the component for “stakeholder input”.   We recognize this as important.  Is that to be handled under a separate RFP or is this to be considered an open-ended item to be defined by the offeror?   

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   The Offeror is not responsible for developing a comprehensive stakeholder process but will be responsible for obtaining data that are necessary for developing the unimpaired datasets and models. 


Question 3: Given the complexity of the project, the need to assemble multiple disciplines, including IT services, climate modeling, etc., the May 8 deadline will be very challenging.  Will any consideration be given to moving the deadline further out?  Typically, projects of this type are assumed to take six (6) or more weeks to assemble.   

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   See GENERAL CHANGES TO THE SOLICITATION on Page 1 of this Amendment. 


Question 4: On page 20, under Task 1, “Schedule”, the RFP notes that “All work must be completed within 2 years of the Notice to Proceed on a particular basin”. Later, on page 21, under Task 2, “Schedule”, the RFP notes that “All work must be completed within 2 years of the Notice to Proceed”.  At the top of page 23, the RFP notes that “Offerors are asked to provide a base price under the assumption that all eight models will have to be developed and that the work will have to be completed in two years.” Please confirm that ultimate schedule for the project is 2 years from the initial contract award/NTP, regardless of when NTP is given for a particular basin.   

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   Yes.


Question 5: How many project descriptions: On page 26, item C – the RFP requests A detailed, narrative statement listing the three most recent, comparable contracts (including contact information) which you have performed and the general history and experience of your organization, then on page 23, item 5 asks for a list of similar projects and says only one page should be used per project described. Please clarify that you are requesting three (3) one-page project descriptions as well as a list of similar projects that could be a more exhaustive list..   

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   The State is requesting two sets of information.  1). Under the technical and business proposal, provide detailed one-page project descriptions with technical information for projects similar to this RFP solicitation and 2). Under Qualifications, provide a list of three most recent comparable contracts.




Question 6: Related to the "specific technical and operational requirements" listed on pp. 20-21:
(a)  Concerning deployment of the web component, is it acceptable to provide the component by publishing the application under Citrix, Windows Terminal Server, or some other remote terminal server software application? If so, does South Carolina currently use remote terminal server software, and, if so, what software does South Carolina use?
(b)  What are the State of South Carolina mandated 508c web accessibility requirements?
(c) What method does South Carolina propose for certifying the software to be free of security vulnerabilities?   

· STATE’S RESPONSE:  
(a):  The SC DNR does not use Citrix or Windows Terminal Server.  DNR’s requirement is for a complex password/passphrase protected web interface login to access the application.  The DNR model implementation will be for internal staff use only.  There is no requirement for public-facing internet access for the DNR modeling system.

The SC Department of Health & Environmental Control (DHEC) does use Citrix to deploy ArcGIS desktop to staff on the agency network.   Based on user need and license availability, this includes access to either Advanced, Standard, or Basic with various extensions.  The DHEC model implementation will include a public access component that is accessible to regional water managers, government agencies and other designated users. 

(b): There are specific requirements for accessibility compliance.  Some of these are negotiable if they have a severe negative impact on the operation of the system. Any deviations from the standard should be documented in the proposal with appropriate justification for the variance.  The link to the 508c standard is:  
www.sc.gov/pages/external.aspx?http://accessibility.sc.gov/OnlineATResources/Pages/PoliciesandStandards.aspx.

(c):  The State of South Carolina Division of Information Security is in the process of purchasing software compiler evaluation tools to determine vulnerabilities in software under development or that has been deployed.  There also may be a state contract for a third party vendor testing/evaluation of these software.  No specific tool(s) have been purchased at this time but numerous commercial utilities are available to identify potential vulnerabilities in software.  It is incumbent upon the vendor to provide certification via third party assessment or output from commercial vulnerability products that this software is free of security vulnerabilities.


Question 7: Related to the Technical and Business Proposals No. 6, "Technical Staff" on p. 22:
Does the reference to technical staff for whom information is to be provided refer to key personnel or all technical (professional?) staff regardless of level?   

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   Only key personnel.


Question 8: On page 21, the RFP states, “Delivery and installation of the modeling software on the (DNR and DHEC) servers for testing purposes.”  Schedule: within 90 days of Notice to Proceed.  Typically, in projects of this nature, the software is either built or modified to conform to a multitude of user requirements, many of which are unknown in the beginning of the project.  It is impossible to anticipate all desired project software needs at the very beginning of the project.  Having to build or even modify software within 90 days, for all intents and purposes, forces assumptions to be made about the software direction, and these assumptions are premature.  We would like clarification if this is a clerical error or explanation as to why the software is being required at such an early deadline.   

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   From a technology perspective, the DNR Technology Program would not anticipate a test installation that quickly.  Testing normally would be after development of the application and part of an end-user test evaluation and prototyping project.  The State assumes that was a typographical error.  

Section III, TASK 3, Deliverable #2, Page 21 of the RFP is hereby amended with the following language:

2.	Delivery and installation of the modeling software on the DNR and DHEC servers for testing purposes.
Schedule: Within ninety (90) days of the Notice to Proceed.  To be negotiated prior to contract award. 


Question 9: With respect to the subject solicitation, under Contents of Offer (RFP) on page 16, please clarify whether the business proposal and technical proposal are to be submitted as two (2) separate bound volumes, or whether the business and technical parts are to be combined into a single bound volume?   

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   To clarify, the technical proposal and business proposal are to be submitted online as two (2) separate files (or two separate volumes of files, if multiple files comprise either proposal).  Additionally, a redacted copy of the technical proposal and a redacted copy of the business proposal should be submitted online.

Finally, one (1) copy of the technical proposal must be provided on six (6) separate thumb drives.  One (1) copy of the business proposal must be provided on one (1) separate thumb drive.


Question 10: (Task I) Should unimpaired flow time series developed for the Broad and Catawba Basins in North Carolina be simply appended to SC unimpaired flows developed and extended to the outlet of these basins, or should they be quality and consistency checked and updated if necessary?

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   Yes, the unimpaired inflows developed for the Broad and Catawba should be quality checked and will have to be updated to include data up to the present time (2013).


Question 11: (Task 1) Is there a common standard for methods and data to be used to derive UIFs in SC, or can each basin vary in accordance with previous work?

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   Attempts should be made to use a consistent methodology but it is understood that methods used in previous work may have varied slightly from basin to basin.  Methods, therefore, can vary to accommodate previous work as long as the data are quality checked.


Question 12: (Task 2) Are models required to be web-enabled. i.e. to run interactively by web, or can they be downloaded, run off-line and results uploaded?  If interactivity is required, what are the main functions a web solution will need to provide to its users from the State perspective?

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   The requirement is for this application to be web-enabled for internal use at both agencies.  Full model functionality is required for DHEC and DNR users.  The DHEC implementation will be accessible to outside, non-agency users.  The DNR implementation will be internal only.  The solution should include a methodology for synchronizing data and model version updates between systems.


Question 13: (Task 2) Are models intended to be directly accessible to external users (without AD accounts), or can they be run by SC DNR or the Consultant based on stakeholder requests?

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   The models installed at DHEC will be accessible to outside users such as water managers and others but with a limit on the number of users that can log in at any given time (concurrent).  Users must request an account from the DHEC to access the model.  Outside user accounts will not use Active Directory protocols.  DNR users will be internal staff only who will use web-based interface with password/passphrase access protection protocols.


[bookmark: _GoBack]Question 14: (Task 2) Is the expectation of this project that the models be built on ArcGIS maps and layers?

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   There is no requirement for the models to be build on ArcGIS, however, this additional functionality, if proposed, will be considered as enhanced functionality and scored accordingly for technical merit.


Question 15: (Task 2) Will model results have to be stored in a relational database, and if so , what RDBBMS is preferred - ORACLE or SQL Server?

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   The DNR runs Oracle 11g and DHEC runs SQL Server 2012 R2.


Question 16: (Task 2) Will use of fully public-domain software waive the security vulnerability certification requirement?

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   No, security vulnerability certification is required regardless of the source of the code.  The intent is to certify that the software solution is free of remote code execution and other security vulnerabilities that could lead to unwanted access and intrusion into agency technology infrastructure and databases.


Question 17: (Task 2) Does the state want to have the solution running on both DNR and DHEC environments, or will either suffice?

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   The State requires two solutions, one running at the DNR for internal staff use only with access as defined above and the second running at DHEC for internal and public access in accordance with specifications defined in the RFP and addressed in this amendment.


Question 18: (General) Will Q&A be distributed to all proposers?   

· STATE’S RESPONSE:   Yes.  As stated in Section II.-A., QUESTIONS FROM OFFERORS (JAN 2004), Page 12 of the RFP, “Any information given a prospective offeror concerning a solicitation will be furnished promptly to all other prospective offerors as an Amendment to the solicitation, if that information is necessary for submitting offers or if the lack of it would be prejudicial to other prospective offerors.”


Question 19:  The solicitation stipulates that the deadline for submission is 05/08/2014 by 14:30 hours.  Does this deadline apply to both the online and hardcopy submissions, or only the online submission with submission of the hardcopies to follow as soon thereafter as possible?   

· STATE’S RESPONSE:  The solicitation deadline applies to both the online and hardcopy submissions.
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